
                                                                             
  
   

 

 
Regular Session 

Council Agenda Packet 
November 2, 2023 

 
 



CITY OF CROWLEY 
CITY COUNCIL 

Council Regular Session 
November 2, 2023 
ATTENDANCE SHEET 

 
          Worksession Regular 
 

Council Member Johnny Shotwell, Place 1   _________ __________ 
 
Council Member Jerry Beck, Place 2    _________ __________ 
 
Council Member Jesse Johnson, Place 3   _________ __________ 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Jim Hirth, Place 4    _________ __________ 
 
Council Member Matt Foster, Place 5    _________ __________ 
 
Council Member Scott Gilbreath, Place 6   _________ __________ 
 
Mayor Billy Davis       _________ __________ 

 
Staff:  
 

Robert Loftin, City Manager     _________ __________ 
 
Lori Watson, Finance Director/Deputy City Mgr   _________ __________ 
 
Jack Thompson, EDC Director/Asst City Mgr   _________ __________ 
 
Rob Allibon, City Attorney      _________ __________ 
 
Carol Konhauser, City Secretary     _________ __________ 
 
Pleasant Brooks, Fire Chief     _________ __________ 
 
Kit Long, Chief of Police      _________ __________ 
 
Mike Rocamontes, Public Works Director   _________ __________ 
 
Matt Elgin, Direct of Projects & Utilities    _________ __________ 
 
Rachel Roberts, Planning & Comm Dev Director  _________ __________ 
 
Cristina Winner, Community Services Director   _________ __________ 
 
Lisa Hansen, HR Administrator     _________ __________ 
 
Julie Hepler, Special Event Coordinator .   _________ __________ 
 
Jay Hinton, Media Relations     _________ __________ 



***An agenda information packet is available for public inspection in the Crowley Library and on the City website, under 
Agenda Packets*** 

Page 1 of 3 

 
Citizens may address the Council by filling out a blue “Citizen Participation” card to discuss any issue that is on 
the Agenda.  Please turn in cards to the City Secretary.  Speakers are limited to three minutes (if using a translator, 
the time limit will be doubled).   

WORK SESSION - November 2, 2023 - 6:30 pm 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

II. NON-ACTION ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
1. CISD Staff and consultant’s presentation regarding Crowley High School.  

DISCUSSION OF ITEMS LISTED ON THE AGENDA 
III. CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted 
by one motion. There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

1. Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held October 19, 2023. 
IV. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. None 
 

V. CITY BUSINESS 
1. Discuss and consider approval of a final plat for Miraverde Phase 2, an approximately 50.331 

acre development, being located in the Moses Walters Survey, Abstract No. 1598, City of 
Crowley, Tarrant County, Texas. Case # PLT-2023-005.. 

2. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance 10-2023-510 amending Chapter 82 “Traffic and 
Vehicles,” Article V “Parking, Stopping and Standing,” Division 4. “Residential Parking Permit 
Area” Sec. 82-188 “Designated Residential Parking Permit Area” by adding Bryan Dr. and Andrew 
St. to the residential parking permit area. 

VI. ADJOURNMENT  

 AGENDA 
CROWLEY CITY COUNCIL 

NOVEMBER 2, 2023 
WORK SESSION - 6:30 p.m. 

Crowley City Hall 
201 E. Main Street 
Crowley TX 76036 



***An agenda information packet is available for public inspection in the Crowley Library and on the City website, under 
Agenda Packets*** 

Page 2 of 3 

 
Citizens may address the Council by filling out a blue “Citizen Participation” card to discuss any issue that is on 
the Agenda.  Please turn in cards to the City Secretary.  Speakers are limited to three minutes (if using a translator, 
the time limit will be doubled).   

REGULAR SESSION - November 2, 2023 - 7:00 pm 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

II. INVOCATION 
 

III. PLEDGE TO ALLEGIANCE TO THE AMERICAN AND TEXAS FLAGS 
"I pledge allegiance to the flag of the United States of America and to the Republic for which it stands, one nation, 
under God, indivisible, with Liberty and Justice for all." 
"Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state, under God, one and indivisible." 
IV. PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS 

1. None. 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. 
There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda 
and will be considered separately. 

1. Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held October 19, 2023. 
VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. None 
VII. CITY BUSINESS 

1. Discuss and consider approval of a final plat for Miraverde Phase 2, an approximately 50.331 acre 
development, being located in the Moses Walters Survey, Abstract No. 1598, City of Crowley, Tarrant 
County, Texas. Case # PLT-2023-005. 

2. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance 10-2023-510 amending Chapter 82 “Traffic and 
Vehicles,” Article V “Parking, Stopping and Standing,” Division 4. “Residential Parking 
Permit Area” Sec. 82-188 “Designated Residential Parking Permit Area” by adding Bryan 
Dr. and Andrew St. to the residential parking permit area. 

VIII. ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
1. Reports 

None 
 

2. Appointments/Reappointments 
Economic Development Corporation - Board President Jesse Johnson 
Carl Weber, III  Place 4  For the remainder of the term ending Sep 30, 2024 
Mike Winterbanks  Place 7  For the remainder of the term ending Sep 30, 2025 
 
Library Board - Board Liaison Council Member Jim Hirth 
Dylan Becker  Place 3  For the remainder of the term ending Jun 30, 2025  
Marilyn Jackson  Place 5  For the remainder of the term ending Jun 30, 2025 
 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 AGENDA 
CROWLEY CITY COUNCIL 

NOVEMBER 2, 2023 
REGULAR SESSION - 7:00 p.m. 

Crowley City Hall 
201 E. Main Street 
Crowley TX 76028 



***An agenda information packet is available for public inspection in the Crowley Library and on the City website, under 
Agenda Packets*** 

Page 3 of 3 

If you wish to make a public comment or discuss subjects not listed on the agenda, please fill out a (yellow) Visitor’s Participation 
card and submit to the City Secretary.  There will be no formal actions taken on subjects presented during public comments.  
Please NOTE council may NOT address or converse with you regarding a NON-AGENDA ITEM. The public comment period 
will only allow members of the public to present ideas and information to the City Officials and Staff.   
 

X. ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
Items of community interest include expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence; information regarding 
holiday schedules; honorary recognitions of city officials, employees or citizens; reminders about upcoming 
events sponsored by the city or other entity that is scheduled to be attended by a city official or employee; and 
announcements involving imminent threats to the public health and safety 
 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Pursuant to Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, the Council reserves the right to convene in Executive 
Session(s), from time to time as deemed necessary during this meeting for any posted agenda item to receive 
advice from its attorney as permitted by law, or to discuss the following as permitted by Government Code: 

1. Section 551.071 (Consultation with Attorney) 
2. Section 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property) 
3. Section 551.074 (Personnel Matters) 
4. Section 551.087 (Business Prospect/Economic Development) 

 

XII. RECONVENE AND TAKE ACTION FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Reconvene into open session and take any necessary action resulting from items posted and legally discussed in Closed Session. 
 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 
I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that this Agenda of the City Council Meeting to be held on Thursday, Nov 2, 2023, of the 
governing body of the City of Crowley is a true and correct copy posted on ____________________, 20____ at _________ am/ pm to the 
City Website and at Crowley City Hall, a place convenient and readily accessible to the public at all times. 
 

City of Crowley 
 

______________________________________ 
Carol C. Konhauser, City Secretary 

NOTICE:  A quorum of the Crime Control and Prevention District Board of Directors and the Economic Development Board of Directors 
will be present at this meeting; however, neither Board will take action on any items on this posted agenda. 

THE CITY COUNCIL RESERVES THE RIGHT OF THE FOLLOWING: 
1.  ITEMS DO NOT HAVE TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE SAME ORDER AS SHOWN ON THIS AGENDA; 
2. THE COUNCIL MAY CONTINUE OR RECESS ITS DELIBERATIONS TO THE NEXT CALENDAR DAY IF IT DEEMS IT NECESSARY. 
The Crowley City Hall is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations must be made 48 hours prior 
to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary’s Office at (817) 297-2201 ext. 4000, or email ckonhauser@ci.crowley.tx.us for further information. 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Jack Thompson MEETING DATE: November 2, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration AGENDA ITEM: Work Session 

SUBJECT:  CISD Staff and consultant’s presentation regarding Crowley High School  

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Director  HR  Comm 
Services  EDC: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Admin: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

Earlier this year, voters approved the bond package proposed by Crowley ISD (CISD), which includes 
the construction of a new Crowley High School campus. The intention of CISD is to situate this new 
facility on the same site as the original campus. However, this necessitates a comprehensive 
reconfiguration of the entire campus layout.  
 
Officials from CISD would like to discuss different options and gather feedback from the City Council. 
The proposed conversation will delve into the challenges posed by existing conditions that might hinder 
the final project design as well as project phases and estimated scheduling. CISD would also like to 
provide the opportunity to address any questions or concerns the City Council may have.  

RECOMMENDATION:  

 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 

 

Currently, there is no immediate financial impact; however, it is important to acknowledge the potential 
future costs associated with some of these proposed changes. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

 
 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Carol Konhauser 
City Secretary MEETING DATE: November 2, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration AGENDA ITEM: V-1 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held 
October 19, 2023. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

Consider approval of minutes as presented. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval of the minutes as presented; council consideration is respectfully requested. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

Approval of the minutes does not affect the budget. 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1.  Minutes 
 



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – October 19, 2023  Page | 1 of 5 

MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION HELD OCTOBER 19, 2023.  The City 
Council of the City of Crowley, Texas met in Work Session on Thursday, October 19, 2023, at 6:30 pm in 
the City Council Chambers, 201 East Main Street, Crowley City Hall, Crowley, Texas. 
 
Present were  Mayor Billy P. Davis 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Johnny Shotwell, City Council Place 1 (arrived 6:38pm) 
 Council Member Jerry Beck, City Council Place 2 
 Council Member Jesse Johnson, City Council Place 3 
 Council Member Jim Hirth, City Council Place 4 
 Council Member Matt Foster, City Council Place 5 
 Council Member Scott Gilbreath, City Council Place 6 
 

City staff included:   City Manager Robert Loftin 
 Deputy City Mngr/Finance Director, Lori Watson 
 Asst City Mngr/EDC Director, Jack Thompson 
 City Secretary, Carol Konhauser 
 Fire Chief, Pleasant Brooks 
 Police Lieutenant, Michael Tate 
 Public Works Director, Mike Rocamontes 
 Asst Public Works Dir, Bill Bateman 
 Director of Projects & Utilities, Matt Elgin 
 Planning and Comm Dev Director, Rachel Roberts 
 Community Services Director, Cristina Winner 
 HR Administrator, Lisa Hansen 
  

Absent: None 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 
Mayor Billy Davis called the Work Session to order at 6:30 p.m.  City Secretary Carol Konhauser called 
roll and noted a quorum was present.   
 
DISCUSSION OF NON-ACTION ITEMS 

1. None. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by 
one motion. There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

1. Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held September 21, 
2023 and the special called meeting on September 26, 2023.   

2. Consider approving an Interlocal Agreement for administrative cost funding for Section 5310 
Program between the Fort Worth Transportation Authority and The City of Crowley, Texas, FY 
2023-24 and authorizing the Mayor to execute said Agreement. 
No discussion.   
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
1. None. 

 
CITY BUSINESS 

 
1. Discuss and consider approving the City Manager or designee to finalize negotiations and 

execute an agreement with Johnson Construction Services for Construction Manager at Risk 
services associated with the remodel project of the City Hall Fire Station. 
 
No discussion 
 



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – October 19, 2023  Page | 2 of 5 

2. Discuss and authorize a new Interlocal Agreement with Tarrant County Public Health for 
food service and swimming pool inspections. 
 
No discussion 
 

3. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance 10-2023-509, an ordinance adjusting the 
boundary between the City of Crowley and the City of Fort Worth at Crowley Rd and the 
future McPherson Blvd extension. 
 
Planning and Comm Dev Director Rachel Roberts explained this was adjusting the boundary to 
give Fort Worth the intersection for the future McPherson Blvd extension. 
 

4. Authorize the City Manager or designee to execute a contract with SAFEbuilt for backup 
building inspection and plan review services. 
 
No discussion 
 

5. Discuss and consider Special Event Permit application for the Karis Grand Opening Event 
to be held on Saturday, October 28, 2023. 
 
City Secretary Carol Konhauser stated that Karis had sent the required insurance. 
 

6. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance No 10-2023-508, amending Appendix A, Schedule 
of Rates, Fees, and Charges, Section (22) Other fees and charges for community development, 
by amending the Subdivision construction inspection fees. 
 
Deputy City Manager Lori Watson explained this was to adjust the subdivision fees as mandated 
by HB 3492. 
 

7. Consider approval of resolution R10-2023-401, authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into a 
contract agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation for the installation of 
FLOCK Safety Automated License Place Recognition (ALPR) cameras on TxDOT property 
and right-of-way. 
 
No discussion 
 

8. Discuss and consider approval of the annual contract (October 1, 2023 through September 
30, 2024) for the fire and ambulance service with Tarrant County Emergency Services 
District No. 1 and authorizing the Mayor to execute said contract. 
 
No discussion 
 

9. Discuss and consider approving a special permit for the Christmas in Crowley Lighted 
Parade. 
 
Special Event Coordinated Julie Hepler provided council with details for the first lighted Christmas 
Parade in Crowley. 
 

10. Discuss and consider approving Resolution R10-2023-402, a resolution accepting conveyance 
of a 20-foot-wide drainage easement on lot 7R, block 12 of the Mesa Vista Medical Center. 
 
No discussion. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
As there was no further business to discuss, the work session was adjourned at 6:41 pm. 
  



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – October 19, 2023  Page | 3 of 5 

MINUTES OF THE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION HELD OCTOBER 19, 2023. The City 
Council of the City of Crowley, Texas met in Regular Session on Thursday, October 19, 2023, at 7:00 pm 
in the City Council Chambers, 201 East Main Street, Crowley City Hall, Crowley, Texas. 
 
Present were  Mayor Billy P. Davis 
 Mayor Pro-Tem Johnny Shotwell, City Council Place 1 
 Council Member Jerry Beck, City Council Place 2 
 Council Member Jesse Johnson, City Council Place 3 
 Council Member Jim Hirth, City Council Place 4 
 Council Member Matt Foster, City Council Place 5 
 Council Member Scott Gilbreath, City Council Place 6 
 

City staff included:   City Manager Robert Loftin 
 Deputy City Mngr/Finance Director, Lori Watson 
 Asst City Mngr/EDC Director, Jack Thompson 
 City Secretary, Carol Konhauser 
 Fire Chief, Pleasant Brooks 
 Police Lieutenant, Michael Tate 
 Public Works Director, Mike Rocamontes 
 Asst Public Works Dir, Bill Bateman 
 Director of Projects & Utilities, Matt Elgin 
 Planning and Comm Dev Director, Rachel Roberts 
 Community Services Director, Cristina Winner 
 HR Administrator, Lisa Hansen 
  

Absent: None 
 

CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL 
Mayor Billy Davis called the Regular Session to order at 7:00 p.m.  City Secretary Carol Konhauser called 
roll and noted a quorum was present. 
 
INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Invocation was given by Media Relations Administrator Jay Hinton followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 
to the American and Texas Flags. 
 
PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS 

1. Presentation of Pavement Survey - Bill Bateman, Asst PW Director  
Assistant PW Director Bill Bateman gave council a presentation on the pavement survey conducted 
by Nexco Paving Solutions.  He explained the street condition was based on seven categories.  
Good (86-100), Satisfactory (71-85), Fair, Poor (41-55), Very Poor (26-40), Serious (11-25), and 
Failed (0-10).  The overall condition of all city streets is currently 83, and the project is the rating 
will drop to 68.5 in 2026.  Several asphalt and concrete street treatments were discussed, along with 
the estimated costs.  Mr Bateman also went over a maintenance strategy to prioritize streets.   
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be 
enacted by one motion. There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that 
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

1. Discuss and consider approving the minutes from the regular meeting held September 21, 
2023 and the special called meeting on September 26, 2023. 

2. Consider approving an Interlocal Agreement for administrative cost funding for Section 5310 
Program between the Fort Worth Transportation Authority and The City of Crowley, Texas, 
FY 2023-24 and authorizing the Mayor to execute said Agreement 
Council Member Jim Hirth made the motion to approve the Consent Agenda item(s), second by Council 
Member Jerry Beck; council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 7-0.  



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – October 19, 2023  Page | 4 of 5 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 

1. None. 
 

CITY BUSINESS 

1. Discuss and consider approving the City Manager or designee to finalize negotiations and 
execute an agreement with Johnson Construction Services for Construction Manager at Risk 
services associated with the remodel project of the City Hall Fire Station. 
 

Council Member Jesse Johnson made the motion to approve the City Manager or designee to finalize 
negotiations and execute an agreement with Johnson Construction Services for the remodel project of City 
Hall; second by Council Member Scott Gilbreath, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as 
presented. Motion carried 7-0.   
 

2. Discuss and authorize a new Interlocal Agreement with Tarrant County Public Health for 
food service and swimming pool inspections. 
 
Council Member Jerry Beck made the motion to approve an Interlocal Agreement with Tarrant County 
Public Health for food service and swimming pool inspections; second by Council Member Jim Hirth, 
council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 7-0.   
 

3. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance 10-2023-509, an ordinance adjusting the 
boundary between the City of Crowley and the City of Fort Worth at Crowley Rd and the 
future McPherson Blvd extension. 
 
Council Member Scott Gilbreath made the motion to approve Ordinance 10-2023-509; second by Council 
Member Matt Foster, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 7-0.   
 

4. Authorize the City Manager or designee to execute a contract with SAFEbuilt for backup 
building inspection and plan review services. 
 
Council Member Matt Foster made the motion to approve the City Manager or designee to execute a 
contract with SAFEbuilt; second by Council Member Jim Hirth, council voted unanimously to approve 
the motion as presented. Motion carried 7-0. 
 

5. Discuss and consider Special Event Permit application for the Karis Grand Opening Event 
to be held on Saturday, October 28, 2023. 
 
Council Member Scott Gilbreath made the motion to approve a Special Event Permit application for Karis 
Grand Opening Event; second by Council Member Jerry Beck, council voted unanimously to approve the 
motion as presented. Motion carried 7-0. 
 

6. Discuss and consider approving Ordinance No 10-2023-508, amending Appendix A, Schedule 
of Rates, Fees, and Charges, Section (22) Other fees and charges for community development, 
by amending the Subdivision construction inspection fees. 
 
Council Member Jim Hirth made the motion to approve Ordinance 10-2023-508; second by Council 
Member Scott Gilbreath, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 
7-0. 
 

7. Consider approval of resolution R10-2023-401, authorizing the Chief of Police to enter into a 
contract agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation for the installation of 
FLOCK Safety Automated License Place Recognition (ALPR) cameras on TxDOT property 
and right-of-way. 
 
Council Member Matt Foster made the motion to approve Resolution R10-2023-401; second by Council 
Member Jim Hirth, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 7-0. 
 



City of Crowley - Council Minutes – October 19, 2023  Page | 5 of 5 

8. Discuss and consider approval of the annual contract (October 1, 2023 through September 
30, 2024) for the fire and ambulance service with Tarrant County Emergency Services 
District No. 1 and authorizing the Mayor to execute said contract. 
 
Council Member Jesse Johnson made the motion to approve the annual contract with Tarrant County 
Emergency Services Dist No 1; second by Council Member Scott Gilbreath, council voted unanimously 
to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 7-0. 
 

9. Discuss and consider approving a special permit for the Christmas in Crowley Lighted 
Parade. 
 
Council Member Jim Hirth made the motion to approve a Special Event Permit for the Crowley Christmas 
Parade; second by Council Member Matt Foster, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as 
presented. Motion carried 7-0. 
 

10. Discuss and consider approving Resolution R10-2023-402, a resolution accepting conveyance 
of a 20-foot-wide drainage easement on lot 7R, block 12 of the Mesa Vista Medical Center. 
 
Council Member Jim Hirth made the motion to approve Resolution R10-2023-402; second by Council 
Member Jerry Beck, council voted unanimously to approve the motion as presented. Motion carried 7-0. 
 

ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS  
Reports/appointments or reappointments. 
1. Reports: 

None 
 

2. Appointments/Reappointments: 
None 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Mayor Davis asked if there were any citizens or visitors wishing to speak.   
 
Mr Daniel Bennett, came forward to request the council vote for Mr Lasada to the Tarrant Appraisal 
District. 
 
Terri Horn, Crowley Chamber of Commerce, reminded everyone of the Golf Tournament on October 20, 
2023.  She also stated that the chamber membership was continuing to new members every month.  
 
ITEMS OF COMMUNITY INTEREST 
 
Mayor Davis then asked if there were any community interest items.   
 
As there was no further business, Mayor Billy Davis adjourned the meeting at 7:36 p.m. 
 
          ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Billy Davis, Mayor     Carol C. Konhauser, City Secretary 



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 3 
 

PRESENTER: Rachel Roberts MEETING DATE: Nov. 2, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Community Development AGENDA ITEM: VII-1 

SUBJECT: Discuss and consider approval of a final plat for Miraverde Phase 2, an 
approximately 50.331 acre development, being located in the Moses Walters 
Survey, Abstract No. 1598, City of Crowley, Tarrant County, Texas. Case # 
PLT-2023-005. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev 
RR, 
TM PW MR, 

ME 
Dept 

Director  HR  Comm 
Services  EDC: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD CS Admin: 
  

 City 
Engineer MC       

BACKGROUND:  
 

Request Final plat for Miraverde Phase 2 with 157 residential lots and 
3 open space lots 

Applicant Bryce Eckeberger from Kimley-Horn 

Location North of Miraverde Phase 1 at the northwestern city limits 

Zoning Classification R-3 (previously known as SF-7.2) 

Future Land Use Plan 
Designation Medium Density Single Family Residential  

Staff Recommendation Approve Conditionally 

Planning & Zoning 
Commission Recommendation Approve Conditionally (pending Council approval) 

The subject property is located directly to the north of Miraverde Phase 1 (not yet built). To the east of 
the property is Deer Creek and undeveloped land, and the Rosemary Ridge subdivision is to the west. 
The Miraverde Phase 2 subdivision proposes 157 residential single family lots with a minimum lot size 
of 7,200 square feet and 3 open space lots (non-parkland common areas to be maintained by the home 
owners’ association).  
 
The preliminary plat for Miraverde Phase 2 was approved by the City Council in July 2019 (preliminary 
platted as End O Trail Ranch). 
 
S TA F F  R E V I E W  

 



Page 2 of 3 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

The Future Land Use Plan classifies this property as 

Medium Density Single Family Residential 

 
The property is shown in the comprehensive land use plan as Medium Density Single Family 
Residential. The comprehensive plan defines this land use category as:   
 

Medium Density Single Family – intended to provide affordable housing options and buffer 
between high- and low-density residential neighborhoods. This category allows for small lot 
single family development with small yards.  

 
Staff considers this plat to be in conformance with the comprehensive land use plan (the zoning code 
considers this zoning district to be medium density).  

 
Development Requirements 

In addition to conformance with the comprehensive land use plan, plats must also comply with 
applicable city regulations in order to be approved. 

 
Requirements from the Zoning District 
A variance regarding the block length was approved by the City Council in July 2019 to allow block 
lengths longer than 650 feet. Therefore, the proposed plat complies with the zoning ordinance.  
 
Requirements from the Subdivision Regulations (Ch. 98) 
The plat drawing meets all the requirements from Ch. 98. Please note that the developer is requesting 
to pay a fee instead of dedicating parkland. The city code states that requests to pay a fee in lieu of 
parkland dedication for any residential development larger than 100 lots will require City Council 
approval. This plat will therefore need final approval by the City Council rather than the Planning & 
Zoning Commission. 
 
Public Works / Infrastructure Requirements (Technical Specifications) 

• The city engineer has recommended approval of the final plat. 
• Public Works supports approving the fee in lieu of parkland dedication. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  
Based on the above analysis, staff recommend approval of the final plat and the fee-in-lieu. 
 
P L A N N I N G  &  Z O N I N G  C O M M I S S I O N  R E C O M M E N D AT I O N  
The Planning & Zoning Commission considered approval of this plat on October 23 and voted to 
recommend approval on the condition that the City Council approve the fee in lieu of parkland 
dedication. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

N/A 



Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENTS:  
• Maps showing property location, future land use plan, and zoning 
• Plat drawing 
• City Engineer’s recommendation letter.  
• Application  

 









__________    _________________,

_______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________





Upon inspection of site performed on September 6, 2023, please find below general observations of 
existing trees to remain within Lot 1X-HOA (11.475 AC): 
 
Lot 1X-HOA 
The northernmost portion of the HOA Lot area parallels the Texas Electric Service Company Easement, 
and is sparsely populated with primarily Mesquite (Prosopis glandulosa) and Bois D’Arc (Maclura 
pomifera).  Mesquite are mostly clumped multi-trunk trees of small to medium size,  making up 
approximately 50% of the trees within this area. The Bois D’Arc make up the remaining trees, with sizes 
similar to the Mesquite.  
 
The southern portion of the HOA Lot is also not heavily forested, with tree species primarily Mesquite 
(Prosopis glandulosa), Bois D’Arc (Maclura pomifera), and Hackberry (Celtis occidentalis). Similar to 
the northernmost portion of the lot, the Mesquite and Bois D’Arc are small to medium sized, clumped 
multi-trunk trees and make up approximately 90% of the material. The remaining 10% is mostly 
Hackberry, with a few, scattered larger trees 18”+ DBH.  
 
The intention is that the existing trees falling within the HOA lot limits will be preserved as part of the 
development. The only trees which would be disturbed would be those affected by grading immediately 
adjacent to proposed lots, streets, or utilities. The above descriptions relay the intentions of the Developer  
not to clear-cut entire development and to preserve a vast majority of the existing trees within the HOA 
lot. The above information will also be presented graphically on a Tree Preservation exhibit.. 





tmangle
Rectangle



tmangle
Rectangle

tmangle
Rectangle

tmangle
Rectangle

tmangle
Rectangle

tmangle
Rectangle



 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Kit Long Police Chief MEETING DATE: November 2, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Police Department AGENDA ITEM: VII-2 

SUBJECT: 
 

Discuss and consider approving Ordinance 11-2023-510 amending Chapter 82 
“Traffic and Vehicles,” Article V “Parking, Stopping and Standing,” Division 
4. “Residential Parking Permit Area” Sec. 82-188 “Designated Residential 
Parking Permit Area” by adding Bryan Dr. and Andrew St. to the residential 
parking permit area. 

COORDINATION: 

Finance LW City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW MR 
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD KL FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  

On Sept. 15, 2022, the City Council passed an amendment to the City Ordinance 09-2022-473 Division 
IV. This ordinance addressed numerous complaints regarding parking issues on specific streets within 
the City. Bryan Dr. and Andrew St. were not included when the ordinance initially passed. The two 
roads are located in the neighborhood just north of Crowley High School. The Police Department has 
received numerous complaints requesting these streets be added to the residential parking permit area. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Staff recommends approval. 

FISCAL INFORMATION:  

The cost for the additional signage is estimated to be $1,860.40 

ATTACHMENTS:  

Ordinance 11-2023-510 
Sign Quote 
Neighborhood Map 

 



Page 1 of 3 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 11-2023-510 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CROWLEY, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 82 "TRAFFIC AND 
VEHICLES," ARTICLE V "PARKING, STOPPING AND STANDING," 
DIVISION 4. "RESIDENTIAL PARKING PERMIT," SEC. 82-188 
"DESIGNATED RESIDENTIAL PARKING PERMIT AREA" BY ADDING 
ADDITIONAL STREETS; PROVIDING THAT THIS ORDINANCE 
SHALL BE CUMULATIVE OF ALL ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Crowley, Texas, is a home rule city acting under its charter 
adopted by the electorate pursuant to Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 
9 of the local Government Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Transportation Code Section 311.001, the City of Crowley 
("City") has exclusive control over and under the streets, alleys and public highways of the 
municipality (hereinafter, "streets"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 51.012, the City has 
general authority to adopt an ordinance not inconsistent with state law, that is in the best interest, 
welfare, or good order of the municipality; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Ordinance 09-2022-473, on September 15, 2022, 
to establish a residential parking permit area; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds and determines that it necessary to add 
additional streets to the permitted area.  
 
  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

SECTION 1. 
 
 Chapter 82 "Traffic and Vehicles," Article V "Parking, Stopping and Standing," Division 
4 "Residential Parking Permit Area," Sec 82-188 "Designated residential parking permit area" of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Crowley, Texas, is hereby amended as follows: 
 
Chapter 82 - TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES  

ARTICLE V. - PARKING, STOPPING AND STANDING  

DIVISION 4. - RESIDENTIAL PARKING PERMIT AREA 
Sec. 82-188 - Designated residential parking permit area 
(a) No person in control of or in possession of a motor vehicle shall park on the following streets 

at locations and times indicated without a valid residential parking permit.  



Page 2 of 3 
 

(1) On North Heights from Andrews St and South Heights to S Beverly St between the hours 
of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days. 

(2) On Mathew Dr. between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days;  
(3) On Celeste St. between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days: 
(4) On Lee Ann St between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days: 
(5) On Patrick St between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days: 
(6) On Cindy St between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days:  
(7) On Julie Dr. between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days:  
(8) On Randy Dr. between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days: 
(9) On Pecan St. between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days:   
(10) On Meadow View Dr. starting at its intersection with S. Heights extending east to Wilson 

Dr. between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days. 
(11) On Redbud St. between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days. 
(12) On Holly St. between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days. 
(13) On Rose St between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days. 
(14) On Bryan Dr between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days. 
(15) On Andrew St between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on school days. 

 
SECTION 2. 

 All other articles, divisions, sections and subsections of Chapter 82 are to remain as.    
 

SECTION 3. 
 
 This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of ordinances of the City of Crowley, 
Texas, except where the provisions of this ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions of 
such ordinances, in which event the conflicting provisions of such ordinances are hereby repealed. 

 
SECTION 4. 

 
 It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the phrases, clauses, 
sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this ordinance are severable, and if any phrase, clause 
sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect 
any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since 
the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance 
of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

SECTION 5. 
 
 That all rights or remedies of the City of Crowley, Texas, are expressly saved as to any and 
all violations of the City Code or any amendments thereto regarding solid waste that have accrued 
at the time of the effective date of this ordinance; and as to such accrued violations, and all pending 



Page 3 of 3 
 

litigation, both civil or criminal, same shall not be affected by this ordinance but may be prosecuted 
until final disposition by the courts. 
 

SECTION 6. 
 
 The caption of this ordinance stating in substance the purpose of this ordinance shall be 
published one (1) time in a newspaper having general circulation in the City of Crowley, Texas 
upon passage hereof. 
 

SECTION 7. 
 
 This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage and publication is 
required by law, and it is so ordained. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS _____ DAY OF ______________, 2023. 
 
      CITY OF CROWLEY, TEXAS 
 
      _________________________________ 
      Billy P. Davis, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Carol Konhauser, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_____________________________ 
Rob Allibon, City Attorney 







 

City of Crowley, Texas 
Mayor and Council Agenda Report 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

PRESENTER: Carol Konhauser 
City Secretary MEETING DATE: November 2, 2023 

DEPARTMENT: Administration AGENDA ITEM: VIII-2 

SUBJECT: Nominate and appoint Economic Development Corporation Board Members to 
Places 4 and 7; Appoint Library Board Members to Places 3 and 5 

COORDINATION: 

Finance  City 
Sec  Comm 

Dev  PW  
Dept 

Directo  HR  Comm 
Services  Other: 

  
City 

Attorney  PD  FD  Other: 
  

BACKGROUND:  
 

Economic Development Corporation - Board President Jesse Johnson 
Carl Weber, III Place 4  For the remainder of the term ending Sep 30, 2024 
Mike Winterbanks Place 7  For the remainder of the term ending Sep 30, 2025 
 
Library Board - Board Liaison Council Member Jim Hirth 
Dylan Becker  Place 3  For the remainder of the term ending Jun 30, 2025  
Marilyn Jackson Place 5  For the remainder of the term ending Jun 30, 2025 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  

Recommend nominating and appointing selectees  

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  

There is no impact to the City Budget. 
 


	00000a 11022023 Cover Sheet
	00000b 11022023 Attendance
	00000c 11022023 cc agenda New
	000a 11022023 CW Reviewed CISD presentation
	01a 11022023 Staff Report for CC meeting minutes
	01b 11022023 Minutes for CC Meeting
	04a 11022023 01 PLT-2023-005 MiraVerde Ph 2 final plat staff report
	04b 11022023 02 PLT-2023-005 MiraVerde Ph2 aerial
	04c 11022023 PLT-2023-005 MiraVerde Ph2 FLUP
	04d 11022023 PLT-2023-005 MiraVerde Ph2 Zoning
	04e 11022023 Miraverde Phase 2 Final Plat - 2nd submittal
	100323_18034-03FP_S1
	100323_18034-03FP_S2

	04f 11022023 MiraVerde2_treepres_2
	04g 11022023 City Engineer - no comments
	04h 11022023 Miraverde Ph 2 FP_1st sub_plat application_redacted
	06a 11022023 Staff Report - Residential Parking
	06b 11022023 Residental Parking Area Ordinance Amendment
	06c 11022023 OnStreet Parking Map
	06d 11022023 Sign Estimate
	10a 11022023 Staff Report - Board and Committee Appointments



